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INTRODUCTION

‘ Twenty=-six miles novrth of Griffiss Air Base at Rome,

New York, the United States Alr Force is building a radar tow.r.
Its exact heigitis a military secret, but it is over Y20 fgeé
high and 1s the highest strusturc of 1ts kind in the worldj
s:sond only to the impire State Bullding. The tower 1s in
Forastnort aﬁd brinss the town into prominence again. It hasn't
been a vory exciting towm lately; onee iIn amwhile the paper prints
that 1t is |5 below zero again (it went to 52°below five years
ago) but usually there 1s very little hanpening and it is Just
like smy othor small town In New York State.

Forestport incluics three main settlements; Otter Lake,
iioodgate and what is called the village of Forestport although
1t isn't lezally a village sinee its disincorporation in 1938,
This history deals mainly with the village with only a fow
allusions to the other settlements beeause they are cven
younger than Forestport, eash has less than a hundred inhablie
tants and they have both been small summer resorts sinse their
earliest days. |

This history ia written to show that Forestnort has
not always been the quiet sunmer resort that it is today.

By tracing the events since 1ts founding in 1840, this paper
shows Porsstnor:t.as a small sottlement in the wilderness, as
a booming mill and lumboring town and finally as the town 1t

is todaye.



PRELIVIINATLY HISTORY

Two hundred ysars ago the area knowm today as Onelda
Sounty was without a histnrye. It was part of the land slaimed
by tho Onsida Indlans and the white man's civilization had not
yet reached it. But in the fifty years that followed, tha’
Americans began to penetrate the rogions

The Revolutionary Viar battles at Fort Stanwix (Rome) and
at Oriskany brought céntral New York into prominence. Men who
had fought in the Revolution or who had traded with‘the Indians
in thc area returned on footy in ox carts or up the Mohawk River
in canoes to secttle in what 1s now Onelda County. As the whole
countfy was settled on a vuen larger scale, 80 was Onelda
County; the people settled first in Whitestown {(Whitesboro) and
then moved north and west, The fast that Governor Clinton,
General Marinus Willett, George i/ashington, William Floyd and
Baron Von Steuben owned lands in the reglion influenced others to
settle there.! The last area in the sounty to be settled was
Forestport, which was then included in the town of Remsen.

The state constitution of 1777 forbade the purohase of
Indisn lands by individuals in order to rescrve this right for
the state alone. The "New York Genesee Land Company" was
organized in 1787-1738 by eighty or ninety persona to evade
this law by leasing all the lanis of the Six Nations for 999

years. But in 1788 Governor George Clinton was suthorized to

1lDaniel Ee liager, Oneida County History, Boston, 1796, p« 60.




disregard these contiracts with tho Indians and all the sottlers
in the Indian lands were driven from thelr homes, whiah were
destroyed.2

In 1738 the govermment met at Fort Stanwix with Indian
representatives and after muech parleyingy bought the lands
from the Six Nations. A treaty known as the Onelda Reservation
coded Oneida County to the United States on Sept. 22, 178843
In 1371 the county, whizh ineluded the area eovered today by
Jeffe 'son, Lewls and Oneida Counties, was divided into twenty
tormshipse. By 1805, the three counties had been ée?arated.h

Of the seven land patents granted in Oneida County by
the govermment, parts of three of them are Inocluded in the
town of Forestport. In 1701 Matthew Adgate, a member of the
first constitutional convention and a member of the New York
State asscmbly purchased by contrscty /155000 acres of land in
tho northern part of Oneida County for two shillings six penoce
per acre., His patent to what is known as the Adgates V/estern
Trast was issued Jamuary 30, 1798 and was surveyed into lots
west of the Blsck River by Benjamin ‘iright. This tract was
later broken up into the Pigquet, Gouvernsur, Millﬁghd Swanton,
and Devereux Traota.s |

The Remsenburgh Patent, aonsisting of 18,770 seres, was
granted Doe mber 28, 1787 to Henry Remsen, J. G« Klock, George
Kloek and John Van Siee upon thelr petitioning the legislatu-e

2Wager, History, pe 55.
%;Q;Qs, Ps 6§o

hibsd., pe 117, 143.
5Ibld.s pe 126.
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that this area had been conveyed to them by a deed in 17066
which was resorded with the Becretary of State.0 |
Thomas Machin was grantod a patent June, 1768 of 31,1360
acres. lachin, who was born in England, snme to Hew York Iin
1772. He was a skilled engineer and surveyor and assisted in
placing a chain across the Indson River to prevent British boats
from passing ‘/est Point during the Hevolution,7
The'ﬁoodhull Tract is apparently a later granﬁ originally
eight miles square, which constituted what was called a full
8

toomshipe

'6Ibid!j pe 112,

85amel e Durant, History of Oncidr Gounty (1667-1378),
* Philad lphia, Pmss Ce 1330, Pe 121




CTLLIAVIVILLE

In 1340 Trumsn 'als broaght thes [irst iandustry to the

fow so:tl s on the Blask River where the tvwns.of Rumsen snd
Boonvills mote He built a chair fastory th:-c, which was soon
followed by Srith's saw nil! on the west slic of the vivnf. |
Alfr=d Hough built th f1rst hoase on the east siﬁo wher = the
village is tola‘.g' It was probably at thls tine that the sottle~
mont was ¢~1lled "Smith's 411", Although theré weva'g*aw peonle
living there, a map made in 1815 shows the ares as a wildcrness
with only a few houses at Vhite Lakes

_then the Black Rivér Canal was sta ted in 1336, plens wore

mede to construoct a feeder from the towvm now salled Viilliamaville

to charmel water from the Blaek River into the nanal at Boonville.
The Erie Canal was expanded in 1847 and eouldn't operatec without
wator from the Blaek River so the ¥illiamnville feeder wns
finishoed in 18, A aam, replasing an older dem which formed
& snwmill pond, was built at Williamsville and enothor dam wns
built at the outl t of North Lakeg making -two vesorvolirs to
provide water for the oanals. The feeder was cixfy feet wlde,
and between six and seven feet a epet?

' The feeder was very difficult to build b@equse 1t was laid
out on the fase of steep sand hills fifty to seventy~fivc feet
above the river and any heavy rains washed out the towpath so

that mich of the wor!- had to be done moré than once,

9Wagor, History, Pe i3
10

Durant; History, ps 467
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Befors the feeder had been built, the arcas with thc most
settlemont wore Meekerville, Grantville and iioodhull, These
were grown up arcund mpills and tannories but when the canal
'gave #11liamsville an easy mcthod of transportation) the |
people moved into the 7v111agc-. Today Grantville is just forosts,
lieclkerville has one su:mer home and iioodlmil has fm.tz' houses.

The Tecder greatly mcreaséd the land value of 1111amsville
and zare an idoal method for shipoing n»odusts made at the
~mills. A saw mill w~s bullt on bthe new Stat Tond formed by
the dam, there were two mills below the dam & mill tor press=
ing bark about a half mile below this. Dre Platt i/llliams
built a large home (now owned by Thonas and -Richard Ka:ﬁan) ,
on the Alder Oreek Road and a mill a nile and a half down
the sanal from the town named for hime A two-story school
builiing had been constructed which held slasses during the
sumer and winter months with vasations in fall and springai
Tha‘ school hal one room on each floor and each room hal a enunter
extending around the walls with benshos plased at the ocounter
80 that the atud.nts sat with thelr backs to the teschere

The first trip on the now foeder was a momentous ocoasion
for the Williemsville residents. The oanal boat, aarrying
Canal Commissioner Beach; was drawn by horses from Boonrville
to Williamsville on Descmber 16, 1843, Sehool was dismissed
and ifre Hell, the teashor, took all his pupils to the dosk to
‘8eo the boat.n' ’

The year 1851 began a decade of rapid growth in Williwms=
ville. A hotel_.wasv opened by Anson Hayden, Lor.n Miller built

Umomas . 0'Donnell, Smubbing Postss Boonville, Ne Ye
1919, pre I, 35. . ’
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g stove; a hub fantory, grist mill and butter tub faotory were
bullt and lumbering and tanning became the ehief industries,
- There were several ﬁi}ls on both sides of the river and state
pond, on the Little and Big toodhull Creeits and on somé nf the
smaller streams near “oodgate by 1860..

In 1857 meveral of the townspeonle organized a Lyoeum
for "mitusl improvement and useful knowledge“la as the seores
taryls ressrd stat. s, Thby disomssed such wvital questions as
Mhich is the most injurious to sosiety, the flatterer or the
slandsrcr?%, "Resolved: That the invention of the printing
press has been of more benofit to mankind than the stoam englne"
and "Resolved: That a liar is worse than a thief in a |
community“.la The lyseum lasted only two years so thsre probably
,wﬁsﬁ't much useful Inowledge or too mush improvehesnt spread
through the eomﬁunityﬁ _ .

A Catholie Church was built in 185!.np§r where the Cathow
vlic cemetery is today and & Methodist ohuroh soon followed.
In 1857 en Episcovnal ahursh was built and when the Methoiist
church disbanded in the early 192nfs, tho Lnissopals bought
‘that building so they soild meet in the villages In 1807
the present Catholies shureh wga builte |

' The Union Presbyterian Church of Alder Cresk and Forestport,

whish was formed in 1839, united with the Utiea Presbytery
in 1866 and held serviees in the Mothodist Church and In
.Temperanse Hall until the present ehursh building was built
In 1879 The first pastor was \/111ism Cloveland, and when

13M1nute book of the secretary of the Forestport Lyseums



his brother, President Grovo: cleveland brought his bride to
Forestport for a visit, 1t was a highlight for the surmer of
the whole ares. Vhen ‘telegrams began arriving for the presi-
dent, lorace Dayton, who ran the telegraeph offlce and also
repaired cloclis and did photography asked a small boy named
Fred Graff to deliver them for hime In & lotter writton to
his sunt, Hrs. John Heejer, in 1GhN, lire Graff tolls that
alter delivaring several _telegrema and getting only "thin
dimos' as tips, a man staying at the Sh.rman House sent him
with & note to deliver to the president and told him to ask
the presidont for a quartors Mre Cleveland gave tho oy &
silv:: dollar insteadh and this gave him the courage to collest
on both ends for the rest of his dellverless

“mile the sctilement lmown officlally as viilliamsville
(and unofficially as Punkeyville; talting the name of the small
flics which invade the area every sumer) was still a part
of the town of Remseny there was a rather involved system of
voting. The people living on the westi side’, of the rivery
whioch was included in the towﬁ of Boonvillo, voted in Boon=
ville, Who sottlurs on the east side voted in Remsen on
altcmate years and the Remscn residents in Williamsville
on tho othor years. This made it very hard for the Williame~
ville residents who worked in the woods booause they didnt't
have time to get to Femsen to vote before the polls olos:de
One yeoor a group of cltlsens decided to tako matters into
thelr owm hends 82 thoy sauntercd into the polls at Remscn
but Instoai of voting, snatshed the ballot box and took 1t

baocl: to Willismsville Lo make 1t c'asiar for the woodsmen.
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This seemed to sonvinge the Remscn people thatvsanething shoulad
be done about the voting system so in 1860 a oommittee wom
named to divide Hemsen and VWillimmsville into two separate
towmu. James Hitchell -and Charles Thomas of Remsen and
i1111am Be Jackson znd Alfred Bough of !711liamsville were
paid 31.50 a day to suvrve on the conmittee .33

- In 1852 Anson Blake began buying land in 1/111ligmsville
and sontimed buying it until he owned all the hllls surround-
ing the village, soms lots in the village itself and land for
some distance on both sides of the river and west of the
eanal fee@er. He married the daughter of Dre /illiems and
acquired cne-third interest in much of Willimus's land.
(He also bought other land in Oneida County and sutside the
couﬁty.) He purchased this land with the plan in mind of
cloaring it and raising corn and potatooss Clearing this
large area of ita virgin tiwber gave work to the mills In
7111iamsville for several yeare and brought lumber orews from
as far north as Ottawa but Blake soon found that the growing
scason was too short and the soil too sandy to raise sorn 8o
tho Blake's Hillas were lef't sormpletocly stripped of thelr
timber and even today have only young trees in an aroa of
msh heavicr forests. ihen Blalke diled, his land passod to his
heirs and today 1s oxmoed by Hew Forest Ince, & privaﬁe company.lh
| Althougiah nany of the trees telled were made into lumber
and th. bark used for tanning, some of the largest treesy

particularly sorusepworce snved tc malre spars for shipges

13014 record books of the town of Remsen stored in the
fovm Tlerkl'a Office.

1”Letter written by Howard /s Taylor, membor of New Forest
Ine. to Christorher Magce.
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The logs, usually from forty-five to sixty feet long, although
somoe werc a8 long as seventy-five feet, were tied togothor
into rafts and piled un until they senk three feet, eight inches
in the canal. A small shanty for the men and horses was bullt
on one end of the raft and they were floated on the feeder to
Boonville, then down the Blask River Canaly, the irie and the
Hudson River to New York where they sold for around'$15-15

One spar was so 1 ng and perfest that 5170 wss offer:d to any~
_ one'nho could find its equal, but one was never found.

Piling from W1lliamsville for New York docks was also shi >ped
dovm the canals, Many of the logs for both spars and piling
were brought from the woods dowm the old dugway to the pond,

Hemloecks, some as old as five or six hundred years, were
cut-and the bark used in tanning. The logs that the bark was
taken from were just left in the woods to rot and Alonzo
Denton and Nathaniél atérbury selzed the opportunity to use
the logs to make lumber. They built a saw mill, bought the
Hough and Hurlburt store end hed a lumber e¢smp betwcen {Williams-
ville and North Lake,

Another man important in th: growth of th. village was
Philip McGuire (called "Black ER1l" to distinsuish him from
his red-haired cousin, "Red Phil"), He was an Irishman vho
came to Williamsville after working in Hawkinsville and Lyons
Falls._ He bought 350 aeres of farm land and 7,700 meres of

timber and became so sussessful that he purshased a tannery

15F. A. Speaf, "hen Forestport lias a Rip~Roarin! Forest
Port", Obscrverw-Dispatch Magazine, Utlsa, Ne Y., June lj,
1939, ppe f{‘;
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in 1871, built a grist mill in 187!, e pulp mill in 1888,

in 1381 a feed mill, in 1889 a cheese fastory and a large
home and barn. He was contrasted to build a dam in 1839 a
mile and a half above the village for a consideration of
M5,0m0,16 This dem forms Kayuta Leke which is today lined
with surmer homes, but at that time was used as another
reservoir for the Blask River Canal, HMeGuire was also respon-
sible for starting the shipment of spars and plles from
Viilliamsville,

In 1867 Jonathan A. Hill, Haine, a general in the Civil
iiar, and his partner, Thomas E, Prostor, Boston, built a tan-
nery at ioodhull (then ocalled Port Woodhull)s This was the
larcest tannery in the state and had 120 vatms which used |
54000 to 6,000 oords of hemlosk bark a year. The raw hides
were shipped into P&lliamsville and this tannery alone pro-
duced 25,070 hides anmually to be boated bask down the eanal,
In 1375 a side of sole leather produced at the %nootor and Hill
tanmery won first price aﬁ the Centsnnial Exposition in
Philadelphia. Hill 8lso raqﬁ:tore, built sevoral houses for
»his workora and ran the Blue Eagle boarding house (named
after its coat of brilliant blue paint).. \hen the tannery
went out of business, Hill moved to other tannery interests
in Athens, Pa, and s0ld his house and store to Ve Es Alberte
son who built a pulp mill at Vioodhullel! The Woodhull Devele
- opment Company whieh took over the area so0ld buillding lots and

tore down the abandoned millsy,so today only four houses remaine

16Wager, Historys, "Family Sketches}, pe 17«
17Durant, Historys pe 469,
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FOREST?ORT

The gommittee whioh was earning 1,50 a day to divide
#111iamsville and Remsen must hav: been trying to make some
easy money or else worked as most sommlttees do, besause it
wasn't until November 2lp, 1869 that the town was finally
erected from Remsen. The post office at Voodmll had been
moved to #illlismsville for conveniense and Robert Orandall,
the postmastpr suggested the name be changed to Forestoort
'since the canal had made the town a port in the foreat.
Lveryones inoluding the United States post offise department,
agreed and when the town was formed 1t took the name of the
post offise. In 1870 Harry lieed wes elested the first
supervisor.l8

Durant's history gives the population of Forestnort
in 1870 as 1276 and in 1875 as 1280. He states that Forest-ort
had twenty-five log dwéllings‘ the greatest number in the
gounty and they were valued at 32030 or sbout %81 eash. In
1877 the real estate value as fixed by the supervisors was
$3735951 and a year later the eaqualired valuation, real and
personal of ;3,178 was $80,Oh3‘19

In April of 1869 the North Lalke Dam went out aﬁd the
thirty-three foot height of water washed out the PForestport
dam, the bridges scross the river and three mills, During
the rebuilding Mr. Salvillian Traffern ran a ferry boat from

18Wager. Histogx; PDe hha. Wae
19D1rant,~ Hiﬂt@l:z.. Pe 2174
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Denton's point to the slte of the Seifort and Herrig mill,.
The boat was attached by ropes and pullles to a line and
pulled basl: and forth across the pond by hand.

The last two desades of the ninetsenth sentury found
Forestport a booming lumber town with "no lew north of Remsen."
There were at least a dozen saloons within a two-mile limit,
with a baseball bat behind eash bar to provide law and order.
The owner of one saloon, which was on the town line between
Forestport and Boonville, used to move the bar from one end
‘of the rbam to the other, depending upon whiech town had
voted dry at tho times ithen & small part of Forcstporty
which was legally in the town of Boonville, was smexted to
Forestorort in 189N, the bar tender lost his advantage,over
the other saloons.

The whole area was centered around the canal feeder.
¥ills at White Lake snd along the Woodhull Oresks had been
abandoned and the people moved into the village. There were
stores; blacksmith shops,‘a harn-gs shop, a hdb‘and spoke
~plant, hotels, and grist mills, feed mills, saw millas, tanncries,
a chalr factory, shingle mill, a jewelry store, alurehes and
'eVGn a soslety of Good Templars with 160 members. An act of
Legislature on Méy 23, 1867, suthorized the somstrustion of
&8 rallroad from Porestnort to Bellingortown, with a sour to
Grantville, which was built by Stephen Potter,20 This was a
- wooden raiflroai nnd the lumber and hubs from the Grant mills
were pulled on‘cars by horses down to a dook on the pond and

loaded into oanal boats, The boats were loaked through from the

20iiagor, History, ps 201,
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pond to the feeder, A canal bomt sould esrry 55,070 feet
of lumber and made a round trip to Albany in two wwekn.al

Besides the MeGuire mills in the village and the “roctor
and H1ll tanmmery at Woodhull, there were mills on the pond
ovncd by Ve Re Stanburgh, Syphert and Herripg, Jemes Gallaghor,
Goorpge Farley, O lls Bingham, and Hough snd Hurlburt. GCharles
llayes hed a turning and planing mill at Woodhull and sold
excelsior, Francis LaFountain ran a lumber mill on the Bear
Creek, Inos Nrandnll had a mill at Bellingertown, Fred Brown
operated a shingle mill on the Alder Creek Pond, the Veed
‘Brothers had a mill on Pine Creek, Josenh Ano on Little Vood-
hull Creek, three miles above the villapges

The largest mill in th town was bullt in the 189"ts by
the Porestport Lumber Company. Thls was organlzed to cle- r
21,000 acres of lend in the North Lake #rea whioh was owned
by the Adirondack League Clube The mill was run by Thomas
0tlle1l from Molra and his nephew George Ainsworth and drove
five million feet of timber into the State Pondgzz

Lumber and wood produots were not the only things shipped
from the Forestnort feeder, William Shanlzs won & bet by
taking a load of 1ce on his s'mal boat to New Yorlr without
its melting before he pgot there, Potatoes raiscd at Forest
port were also shinped on the canal, Grain was brought in
and ground at the grist and feed mills to use for nil the
‘horses connegted with the cnnal and lumbering.

2lspear, "Rip-Roarin! Forest Port"; Pe lfe
22._19_!-_@‘! Pe ‘33» "o



THE BREAKS

Porcat ort scered to be more prosperous than 1t oo :ld
have ever honed for. . lthin fifty y=ars since tﬁe fecder
had boen zoastmated, thce village had growm from a few houses
in the wildornossvto a thriving lumber tom. Iumber, spars
and oth r wood »roduots we « being shipped on fl.ets of canal
boats tn New Yort and the oities along the Hudason.

But there were a fow men in the village who didn't think
they wero making onough money. S0, on July 23, 1397, the
first bresk in ﬁhﬁ acanal appeaceds The brealk, whish was the
worst evor to osour in the Blesk River Jemal and one of the
worst In state hiatory, was absut a milc and a half from the
village, where the tow-path is sev nty fesl ebove the riiev.‘
Soventeen ndrad mén worked day and night for thirty days
to £i11 the holc whieh was “six hmdred feet wide and diity
foot dla»e_sp.\a’L Mr..O'Donnéll includes in his ﬂesnriptﬁon of
the worl, an undat d quotstion from the Utica Herald:

n

The first worlt done was the bullding of a sheet
of piling} two rows fifty<three feet high were
eonrtructed axross the sute A half-arsh core weas
then nsonstrusted, extending from one end of the
brealr t» the oth r, Sand and gravel were used in
£1lling the sore, and these were nuddled, whish
eonsisted of mixing and pounding, whish mekes the
earth more solid. ' '

""he sand was sesured near the break by an
endless chain of tesms, No team stopped to be loaded,
a8 there were so many men at work that as the wagons
passod by esch one thrcw in a eouple of shovele
fuls of -sand and when the wagons reached the end

A

2,:_@1,1",9-11;; HistQry, ve. '!—70/
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of the line they were loadede The sand was secured
from two ssndbanks, the gravel from a pit two miles
from the bresk. There were 25" teams at work, and
eagh team drew six loads of gravel & daw.“zg
| The men were pafd $1.65 a days the toams 3l an hour
and they got time énd & half fof Sundays. 7The cntire |
cost of rebuilding was $62.781¢78.26
The second break came on May 23, 1898 and elosed
the cenal for twenty-one dayse This one was four hundred
foet wide and fifty feet deep and sost the state 550,767
to repair-27Aga1n the towm was full of people, the stores,
harness shop,; and blnasksmiths were bus and everyone
had work, But the state began to be a little suspicious.
t/hen the third break oesourred on September 18 of the‘
next year, the state sont Pinkerton men to 1nyestigatau'
Even though this was s smaller breakj three hmndred feet
wide and between thirty and forty feet duep, 1t took seven=-
teen days to reppir and cost $17,OB9.72.28After a sories of
arrests snd trials, some of the townds most prominent members
- were convisted of ecausing the breaks to bring business to
- Porestnort. Thirteen men were arrested} five of whom were
Batled, three fined, three freed and two more freed for turn~
ing state's evidenoeoag
The breaks did sueceed in bringing businesas td Foreste

port,,for these three years were among the most prosperous

250'Donnell. Snubbing Posts, PPs 97 le
Zélbid.’ Pe 9l1.

T ——

2Tpurant, History, pe 470

28Durant,ﬂ§13torx, P» h?OI

2901Donnell, Snubbing Posts, Pe 9le
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for the towme. The boarding housca wore full, the saldons and
hotels were always busy and cveryone was making moneys But
everyone was undor sus‘pioion. Iivery day 8 now man was meutsd,
enlled as a witness or at least suspecsted by his noighbors.

Tt was rumorsd that there was a sesret tunmcl under River

Street connesting Jim Rudddphte saloon run by Hugh "One-Eyed
Mike" MacDonald and Doyle's anloon in casc any of the men had

to get together in an emergonsy. Seversl neople have tried

£n find the tunnel; one woman besane quite indignent & few

years acto when a man wanted t2 dig un her sidewall to soarch

for the tunnsll; but 1t has never been founde
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THE FIRES

While Forestport was at the height of 1ts prosverity,
the village was destroyed three times by fire. The first fire
‘started in April, 1801, in the barn of the Sherman Kouse.

The towvn had no fire sompany and the people were helpless. A
‘strong wind blew the flsmes to the hotel, up hoth sides of
School Street snd dorm Division Street to the middle of the
block. Hers tho homses wers not so close togmther and bucket
brigades and rugs sosked in water and laid on the roofs
halted the fire, The same methnd~ werc used on the house
soross the street from the Sher—an House to kceep the flames
from spreading down Hiver Street., No one knew how the firn
started but 1t was rumored that lumber)aoks smoking In the
bern had set fire to the hay. Others bclleved that a Tumbers
'jack who had lost money at sards sot the fire for revenge
against Curly St. Mary, the proprietor,

This fire led the towvmspeople to organize a voluntaer
fire company with Gharies Bingham as 1ts chiefs Ther bullt
a firehouse near the river and this was used untillthn gompany
was reorganized and ingorporstcd and bought the present
building.in 1939, When a fire started in Psbruary, 1399,
the aompany was far from adequatos At 2:3" in th2 morning.

" during one of the worst storms In yenrs, the Getmnn house
was disooverad.tc be on fire. This waa the largest hotel in
town and was built entircly of wood, 20 the flames spread

repidly and were aided by a strong wind. The chemical and hand
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puamp of the fire sompany was tons small to hav: any effect

on the fire and thc water in the hose soon froze so that the
hoze burst and the ren were farced to resort to a buckst
bripade. i'hen the fire was finally checked, fourteen bulldings
"on River Street and Voodhull Street had burned and the panige
stricken neonle from twenty-four othors had ea ried thelir
possessions into the streets. The Saturday Globe of Ullasx:
adds this sidellght to the aseount of the fire:

Bihen they the saloons and hotels wers burning

and people were racing here and there getting out

houselinld effects, one old Tfullow was yelling

frantically to the passing tesmsters; #For God's

salte heln get this whisky out of the way. BHere's

two barrels of whis'y worth $150 and if you don'd

move them they'rs going t» burn up.' But no one

heeded his appeal. Some of the fasetious and hall«

frozen fishters sugaoented that he sut a hole In eash

barrel and put & sup %R sash and he wouldn't require

a tem to wwove thom.™>" : :

Tor a sesgond time the tomn rebullt md as an added proe
‘eaution, in 1973, ingorporated the villegey with Joln Ne
Neejor as first mayor, so a water systom gould be starteds
This would provide firs protesitimn.

Befove the weter was permanently turned ong a third fire
broke out in 0'Tonnor's Hotel in 1976, This fire wes unch
gualler} it burned seven buildingse inoluding twn hotels, s

saloon, & barbor shop and a store plus all the barns behind
these buildingse.
By this time the residents had noving out from thelr

. homes worked dovn to n syst.m, although they did get aeonfused

30 "Forcastport Sulfers'y The Saturday Globos Utlemy Ne Yy
February 11, 1399, '
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trying to find their own belongings in the maze of furniture
4n the streets. Two wom:n manazed to earry out a new bathtub
wvhen they thought the fire threatened the house and it tdok
four men Lo garry it in again.

Soon after this fire the waterworks were permancntly.
instelled at & cost of %22,000}1 The main line from the reser-
‘voir to the villaze was lald with wooden pipe and mush of 1%
is st11l 4n us » Ths nsw wnter ay=tom, besides providing
fire protesction, also ended the srmmal typhoid feve: epidemios,
Dre George Kilborn, the towm doctor at the tiue, sald that
1f 1t hadntt heen for these epidemiss, he would hgve starved
to de#th when he first started his practice.

The waterworks were shortly followed by vloohrielby
provided by an clectris lisht nlant on the rivor.un by
George Farleys The lights were provid d during ths winter,
but when the water was diverted into th2 canal during the
surmer, there wasn!'t enough water going over the dam to mn
the lightse The elactvigity was provided from dusk until
‘eleven o'clock, and the lights slways blinked at 10:55 to
give the residents time %o light thelr lampse If thore was &
dence ox some other avont in the ovening, Mr, Farley could
sometimes be narsuaded to proviie elestrizity for an extra
hhur or two, ‘hen the machinory bogan to gob old, the lights
went out fremuentl~” and someone alwavs had to go und find

- My41d Bill Miller®™, the only man in tovm who sonld fix theums

3 Rarry Je Govrley, "Forestnort 711l Get Noxb Visit from
Jingle Man", Utiocs Obserrsr-Dispastdh, Ostober 12, 192h,
pe 1, Seotion IVe
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After a mmber of yenrs, the villaze bought the plant and
sreated the Mmicipal Light Company with improved machinery.

In 192 Inlet bought the plant, snd the whole town was | préirided
rith electriaeity by thé Northarn New York Utilitiess The
village was dissolved in 1938 and tho town took over the

waterworks and mads.
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THIS TWENTIETH CENTURY

1

~ In the early nineteen lmndreds, thec charaster. of the
towm began to chanps. The traffic on the canal was dropping
of'f and one by one the mills wers closed. A fow burmed end
were never rebullts; others‘closed for laslc of business,
3everal years befqre the lart trip woe made on the ecanal in
1022, the omly boat coming up the foedor was the state scows
As the rillls closed and the mrwber of poople in tovm deoreased,
several of the stores went out of businocss snd, la~t of all,
many of the s~loons elosed.

The small school house hnd been outgrorm dnring the

‘boom, espesially after a ninth grade was added in 1897,
A new school building was built around 1976 by Slmor Yoomans
with five rooms, This wrs onlled the Forestport Unlon School
and had ten grade=, Whén this building burmsd in 1926 the
nroblem arose of seleating a new site. The Woodlull sehool
wanted to sombino with the Forestport sohool but wantead the
building in nndmll, The Forostport pecile wanted 1t on the
0ld site, but this had born sondermed by tho state begsuse 1t
was too slose tn the state highways Flnally they aampromised
and the present twelve«ggzgé Forestport Jentral Schs0l was
built in 1927, in Beechwood, half way belween Foveat~ort
“and VWoodhull end inelnding Forést%ort, Yoodmll, Catterson,
Powers, Kinkead, Kirkland and Bellingertown distrists and the
Drexel district which was added lator. "Beeshwood 1s also

salled Toggletown, after ifugenc Hemstreet who repaired cankl
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boats and instead of always doing a thorough BJob, often
just "toggled things up.") Forestport's school was the
first central school in the dounty snd one of the first in
the state. It is t.he‘ only sshool in the town exaept for a
grade sehool with less than a dozen pupils at i .odgates

Forestport formed a library in 1895 which was 1nsorpmtad
with the Publis Library Bureau in 1397. A library building
was built on land donated by the Blake estate, largely
through the efforts of John Dy Kerman, Utica, B y 1927 the
library assocliation had besome Inmstive and the bullding
was 1dle except for the half whish was ronted as an apartment,
In 1947 the American Legion bought the building snd ab present
1t 18 uscd by the legion, the logion auxiliary, the boy sacuts
and other sommnity organizations.

The canal was the prinsipel means of transporhé’cion for
years, sinoe the only roads around Forestport were dlrt rosds.
The St« Lawrence Division of the New York Jentrsl passes three
miles from Forestvort and wae used by passencers but froight
was all carried on the canales The Adironda- Division of the
New York Centralpasses through Buffaloheady & aettieman‘k
in Forestport twermiles from the willage, and when this was
first used in 1893, the residents began traveling on this snd
supplies were brought on 1t for the town mershantss The roads |

were not improved in smy way, exscept for sorduroy on parts of

- logging roade and in a small section of road in Beeshwood.

People werc assessed seations of road to maintein instead of
paying a road tax. In 1913 a masadam road was put through
the town s part of Route 28 through the Central Adirondsoks.
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This was soon followed by masadem Tosds throughout the villsge
snd town. A new sestion of road, with s bridge saross the"
State Pond was bullt in 1939 snd euts the village off the
main highway.

| By the end of the First world war Porestyort had settled
down into the resort town that it is today. The canul was
cldsed,. the mills had all been sbandoned and there was very
1ittle happening, However, the town has been in the news a
fow times sinae thens There was the time in 1935 when 104
village voters tied thair‘ choinwf mayory George PFarsons,
" who had been mayor for sixteen years and Fred S. Liddle, who
~ had tied twenty years before :E‘or supervisor, were ths two that
the voters gouldn't deeide on., They settled the vote at &
village board meeting by drawing the name of Mre Parsons from
a hat, |

Four years later, the town was sgain having trouble with

its politiecs. ihen John _Ctoughlinj the supsrvisor, died in
office, it meemed a simple eno:gh process to appeint &
, sugcessor. But the board souldn't agrse on the two candidates
suggested so they finally decided to ghose a third personj
Mpa. Lsura LaFountain. Three members of the board voted for
her and she swore in at Forestports A few mimutes later Fred

Liddle, one of the previous cgndidates, sppeared with e
| petition signed by three members of the board shoosing him as
sup:rvisor. One momber who had signed this petitim several
 weoks earlier when Mre Liddle had enly one signature, thought
the petiti-n had been dropped and voted for Mrs, LaFountain,
s0 when Mr. Liddls finally seoured s third signature he swore
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in at Utiea, and Forestport had two supervisors. For six |
months tho question was unscttleds both Mre lLiddle and Hrss
LeFountain were lesally appointed and neith.r one would bé.ck
outs PFinally Mr., Liddle petitioned for a hearing in the county
a>irts and lirs. LaFountsin was declared supervisors

Like the rest of the eountry, Forestoort sent its soms

into the service and Xm many of its ocitizens into war plént-a
during the wars, Thers were forty-five men in the services
during the first war with one killed and a hundred and forty
three men and women from the town in the sesond world wars
There are five gold stars on the town's honor rolle :
| Today the 730 residents, as roported in the last censusgz
are interested in watohing the radar tower go upe It's the
biggest thing that's happened in several ysars but the town
isn*t too exoiteds, After all, it has lived through
lumbering boom, the notoristy of the bresks, the disaster
of the ‘ri.re-s, aﬁd the transition Into & quiet summer resort
and a radar tower isntt tdo impressive after a history snagh
as this,

32Report of Exsmination, Town of Forestporty State of
gevr York,Department of Audit and Tontrol, Division of
Manioipal Affalresa. /75 0.
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KEY TO MAP
FORESTrORT
1840 - c. 1910

Anson Hayden Hotel (built 1851), later Forest Hotel (M. M.
Mabach, prop.) and later Sherman House

Western limit of first fire

Americen Hotel (Temperance Hall on Second Floor)

Hotel Albert .

Getman House (1888)

Whiter Undertakers

Herbert Helmer grocery

Beynon saloon

George Buckley Hotel, later owned by Charles O'Connor.
Eastern 1imit of third fire

Prosent Gethotte Church PRes8YTer/AA

Southern 1imit of first fire.

#%. R. Stanburgh general store, sold to Forestport Lumber
Company and later to Seifert and Harrig

g, F. Traffarn store, sold to Nichols

014 Methodist Churech, present Episcopal Church

First Episcopal Chureh :

James Gallegher saw mill

Syphert snd Harrig aawmill (1895)

Denton end Waterbury lumber mill

Forestport Lumber GCompany

McGuire grist mill (1881), Farley and Cuppernull (1883),
Farley (188l4), later electric 1ight plant.

Cephus Wicks blacksmith snop, later ownsd by George Parsons
Alfred Hough house~--first house on east side of river.
Hough and Hurlburt store, later owned by Denton and Kater=
bury _ e

Charles Bingham hardware and furniture estore, present fire
house ‘

Denton and Waterbury mill, bought by James Gasllagher
Stanburgh and Hovey steem mill (1883), burned 1888.

Issac Darling blacksmith shop

Yale chalr factory

Fire house and Jall ' :
%illiam King blacksmith shop (also made aleighs and wagons)
John Utley and Son harness shop .

Jim Randolph saloon ,

Boyce and Downing gemeral store (e. 1836)

First school, oresent I. O. 0, F. Hall

Catholic Church (1862)

McGuire cheese factory (18801's)

McGuire home

McGuire pulp mill (1888)

Library, present Americsn Leglon hall

Second school

McGuire feed mill (187L), later Bingham, then Stenburgh
Hough and Hurlburt feed mill, bought by Farley

Mill for pressing bark



27

BIBLIOGRAPHY

BOOJKS:

Beors, D. G+ and Cos Atlas of Onelda Caunt? New Yorke
Philadelphia, D. G. Beers and Coess 187
Made from astual surveys and offiocial recordss

Durant, Samuel V. History of Oneide County (1667-1878).
Philadelphia, Everts and Fariss, Press of J, Bs. Lippine
sott end Company, ¢« 1800. :

O0tDommell, Thomas C. Snubbing Posts. DBoonville, e Yep
' Blaclk River Books, 19!19.
An informal history of the Black River Canal.

Wager, Danlel E., editore. Oneida County Historg. Boston,
The Boston History Company Publishers, 1890,

INTSRVILGS:

Nellle R, Boywe, resident of Forestport for 71 years, Iler
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canals at the time of the breaks,

Anthony Coleman, resident for 63 years., He worked in Hill's
taﬁgery as a boys workcd as & lumberman and then as a
guices ’

Robert Hunter, resident for 70 years. MNr. Hunter worked in |
the Forestport mills as a boy and later ran a asnal boat.

George Parsons, rcsident for 60 years: He ran a bladksmith
shop and was mayor of the village of Forestrort for
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HISTORY OF FORESTPORT, NEW YORK

By PATRICIA AVERY ACKERT
‘May, 1970 ’

INTRODUCTION

- Forestport is celebrating its hundredth birthday in this year 1970. One hundred
‘ears. which span the decades when Forestport was o lumbering and canal town, when
Jagal men. fought wars which spanned: the glabe, when residents of the community
‘;fk‘ei'r';teievision screens to ses men walk on the moon ond later to see the
uts from Apollo 13 land their space craft safely in the Pacific Ocean.
gt 'was life here like in‘the beginning of Forestport's history?

“"Forestport includes three main seftlements: Otter Lake, Woodgate and what is
‘ealled the village of Forestport although it is not legally a village since its disincorpo-
irgtion in 1938. This history deals mainly with the village with only a few.references'to
the other seftlements because they are even younger than Forestport, each has less
than 200 inhabitants and they have been small summer resoris since theiraarliest darys.

- This history is.written 1o show that Forestport has not always been the quiet sum.
mer resort that it is today. By tracing the events since its founding in 1840 Forestport
is shown as a small settlement in the wilderness, as a booming mill and fumbering town
ond finally as the town it is today. '

PRELIMINARY HISTORY

Two hundred years ago the area known as Oneida County was withaut. a history.

. part of the lond claimed by the Oneida Indions and the white man's civilization
yet reached H, In the fitty years thot followsd, the Americans began to pene-

‘the reglon, - B ' S ‘ : /

Jhe Revolutionary. War battles at Fort Stantik (Rére) and df Oriskany brought

teniral New York: State into prominence. Men who had fought in the Revolution or

. Who had traded. with the Indians in the area returned on foot, in ox carts or up the

MohawkRiver in canoes to settle in what is now Oneida County. As the whole country
-was sottled on o much larger-scale, 'so was Oneida County; thé people settled first in
Whitestown (Whitesboro) and then moved north ‘and west. The fact. that Governor
“Clinton, General Morinus Willett, George Washington, William Floyd and 8aron Von
Steuben owned lands. in the region influenced other to settle there, The last areu in .
the county to be settled was Forestport, which was then included in the Town of Remsen. ~

The state constitution of 1777 forbade.the rurchase of Indian lands by individuals
in prder to reserve-this-right for the state aigne. The “iNew York Genesee Lund Con-
pany'’ was organized.in 1787-1788 by eighty or ninety persons to evade this law by
leasing all the lands.of the Six Nations for 999 years. But in 1788 Governor George
_Clinton was authorized to disregard these contracts with the-indians and all the settlers
m*;a Indian lands were ‘driven from their homes which were destroyed, , T

531 4n 1788 the government ot Fort Stanwix with Indian representatives and after some
porleying. bought the lands from the Six Nations. A treaty known as the Oneida Res- .
‘épvation ceded Onegidd’ County, o, the United States on Sept. 22, 1788. In 1801 the
cot ‘hich included the area covered today by Jefferson, Lewis and Oneida Coun-
Hes, w. divided into twenty.tawnships. By 1805 the three counties had been separated.

“. Of the seven land patents grantéd in Oneida County by the government, parts
of three of them are included in the Town of Forestport. In 1781 Matthew Adgate, u
‘member of the first constitutiondl canvention and ‘a member of the New York State
assembly, purchased by contract 45,000 acres of land in the northern part of Oneida :
County for two shillings six pence per acre. His patent to what is-‘known as the Adgates
Western Tract was issued January 30, 1798, and was surveyed into lots west of Black
River by Benjamin Wright. This tract was later broken up into the Piquet, Gouverneur,
MiHer and Swanton, and Devereaux Tracts, '

The Remsenburgh Patent, consisting of 48,000 acres, was granted December 28,
1787, ta Henry Remsen, J. G. Klock, George Klock, and John Yan Sice upon their pe- .
titioning the legislature that this area had been conveyed to them by a deed in 1766
vehich was recorded with the Secretary of State.

" Thomas Machin was granfed & patent June 1, 1788, of 31,360 acres. Machin,
who was born in England, came to New York in 1772, He was a skilled engineer and
surveyor and- assisted in placing a chain across the Hudson River to prevent British:
ships from passing West Point during the Revolution. .

" The Woodhull Tract is agiparently a later grant originally eight miles square, which
eonstituted o full township. ’




WILLIAMSVILLE

In 1840 Truman Yale brought the first industry to the few settlers on the Black
River where the towns of Remsan and Branvilla mat He built : chair factory there, which
was soon followed by Smith’s saw mill on the west side of the river. Alfred Hough built
the first house on the east side where the village is today. It was probably at this time.
that the seftlement.was ¢alled “Smith's Mill.” Although there 'were o few people living
thete, o mop made in 1845 shows the area as o wilderness with: only a few houses at
K e e 1 1848 o o il iy o Lo
o %,‘Q“mthg?_ﬂ,!cdk;;&!eﬁﬁﬁncl was started In 1836, plans were made to construct
‘atee rfmm the Jown now called Williamsville to channel water from the Black River
) »thé canal at Boonville. The Erie.Canal was expanded ir 1847 and could not op-
ergte:withaut water from the Black River so the Williamsville feeder was finished in,
1848. A dgm, replacing an older dam which which formed a sawmill pond, was built

~ akWilliamsville and dnother dam was built at the outler of North Lake, making two
reservoirs to provide water for the canuls. The feeder was sixty feet wide and between

six'ond seven feet deep. * :

. The feeder was very difficult to build because It was laid out on the face of steep

sonid hills fifty to seventy-five feet above the river and heavy rains washed out the

Yevarmeth 2o thoid b wf shi vl b Ve b e e,
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ig}t' the canal at Boonville. The Er;e Canal was ex;;unded in 1847.and could not oﬁ-'

hout woter frapm thi Black River so the Williamsville feeder was finished in,

“dam, replécing on. élder.dam which'which formed o sawmill pond; was built:.

e

Hiomsville .and. antther ddmf‘wm built at the. outlet of North Lake, making two .
rs to provide wdter for.the canals. The feeder was sixty feet wids and between

LY

sxondsévén fest deep.. -

‘The feeder was very difficult to build because it was laid out on the face of steep
sgnd-hills fifty to seventy-five feet above the river and heavy rains washed out the
tgwpath so that much of the work had to be done more than once.

" Before the feeder had been built, the areas with the most settlement were Meeker-
_ ville, Grantville and Woodhull. These were grown up around mills and tanneries but
when the canal gave Williamsvitle an easy method of transportation the people moved
into the village. Today Grantvilie is just forests. Meekerville has half a dozen summer
homes and Woodhull an equal number of houses.

" The feeder greatly increased the land value of Williamsville and gave an ideal
method for shipping products made at the mills. A saw mill was built on the new State
Poud formed by the dam, there were two mills below the dam and a mliil for pressing
bark d half-mile below. this, Dr; Play Willioms built @ large home (now owned by
TPhigmas and-Richard Kernan) on the Alder Creek Road and g#ill-o mile:and o half

" doWnithe canal from the town named for him. A two-story school building: had been *

coustructed which held classes during the summer and winter months with vacations

wr-the Fall and Spring. The school had one room on each floor and each room had a

counter extending around the walls with benches ploced at the counter so that the

students sat with their backs to the teacher. '

7 < The first trip on the new feeder was a momentous occasion for the Williamsville

residents. The canal boat, carrying Canal Commissioner Beach, was drawn by horses
from Boonville to Williamsville on December 16, 1848, School was dismissed and Mr,
Haill, the teacher, took all the pupils to the dock to see the boat.

" The year 1857 began a decade of rapid growth in ‘Williamsville. A hotel was
opened by Anson Hayden, Loren Miller built a store; a hub factory, grist mill and butter
tub factory were built and lumbering and tanning became the chief industries. There
were several mills on both sides of the river and state pond, on Big and Little Wood-
hull Creeks, and on some of the smaller streams at Woodgate by 1860.

- In 1857 several of the townspeople orgonized a Lyceum for “mutual improve-
meht and useful knowledge” as the secretary’s record states. They discussed such vital -

: ﬁ%:ﬁ‘;{,quf,-us‘ “Which is $he most injurious to society, the flatterer or the slandered” and"
piolved, that a liar 15 worse than a thiet in a community.” The Lyceum lasted only
fwe years so there ptobably was not much useful knowledge or too much improvement
" sprecd through the community. .

A Caotholic Church was built in 1851 near where the Catholic Cemetery is today
and a Methodist Church soon followed. In 1857, an Episcopal Church was built and
whén the Methodist Church disbanded in the early 1920's the Episcopals bought that
building so they could meet in_the village. In 1897 the present. Catholic Chyrch -was

“huilt. SRR
""" The Union Presbyterian Chyrch of Alder Creek and Forestport, which was formed
in 1839, united with Utica Presbytery in 1866 and held services in the. Methodist Church
and in Temperance Hall until the present church was built in 1879 The first pastor was
the Rev. William Clévelond,.and when his brother, President Grover Cleveland, brought
his bride to Forestport for a visit, it was ihe highlight of the summer for the whole area.

While the settlemeant known officially asWilliamsville (and unofficially as Punkey-
ville, taking the name of the small flies that invade the area every summer) was still
a part of the town of Remsen, there was rather an involved system of voting. The people
living on the west side of the river voted in Boonville. The setilers on the east side voted
in"Remsen on alternate years and the Remsen residents in Williamsville on the other’
years, This made it very difficult for the Williamsville residents who worked in the woods
fareach the Remsen polls before they closed. One year a group of citizens decided to-
take the matter into their own hands so they sauntered into the polling place at Remsen
‘but instead of voting shaiched the ballot box and took it back to Williamsville to make
it easier for the woodsmen. This seemed 1o convince the Remsen people that something
should be done about the voting system so in 1860 a committee was formed to divide
Remsen and Williamsville into two separate towns. James Mitchell and Charles Thomas
‘of Remsen with William B. Jackson and Alfred Hough of Williamsville were paid $1.50
a day to serve on the commitiee.

In 1852 Anson Blake began buying land in Williamsville and continued buying it
until he owned all the hills surrounding the village, some lots in the village itself, and
land for some distance on both sides of the canal feeder. He married the daughter of
Dr. Willigms and thus acquired one third interest in much of Williams’ land. He pur-
chased this land with the idea of clearing it and raising corn and potatoes. Clearing
this large area of virgin timber gave work to the mills and for several years brought
‘lumber crews from as. far north as Ottawa but Blake saon found that the growing
season was too short and the soil too sandy to raise corn and the project was soon
abandoned, leaving the hills stripped of timber. Even today they have only young
trees in it area of much heavier forests. )




HISTORY OF FORESTPORT — (TWO) . ... .o ... BC
- . Although many of the trees felled were made into lumber and the bark used-for
tanning: leather, some of the largest tregs; particularly spruce, were saved to make
spars for ships. The logs, usually from forty-five to sixty feet long, were tied together
into rafts and piled up until they sank three feet eight inches into the canal. A small
shanty for the men and horses was built on one end of the raft and they were floated
: down:sthe'fee'der to Boonville, then down the Black River Canal to the Erie, the Hudson
and New York where they sold for $15.15. One spar was so long and so perfect that
$100 Mps offered for another dike it but one was never found. Piling for New, York
City docks. was also shipped from Williamsville.

Hg(n‘qcks, some as old as five or six hundred years, were cut and the bark used
for tanfiing. The logs from which the bark was taken were just left to rot. Alonzo
Dentory.and Nathaniel Waterbury saw an opportunity here, built o sawmill, bought
the Hatigh gind Hulbert store-and had a lumber camp between Williamsville and North

Anpther ‘man important in the growth of the village was Philip McGuire (edlled
“Black Phil” to distinguish him from his read-haired cousin, “Red Phil”). He was an lrish-
man who came 1o Williamsville ofter working in Hawkinsville and Lyons Falls. He
bought 350 acres of farm land and 7,000 acres of timber and became so successful
that he purchased a tannery in 1871, built @ grist mill in 1874, a pulp mill in 1888, in
1881 a teed mill, in 1889 a cheese factory and o large house and barn. He was con-
tracted to build a dam in 1889 a mile and a half above the village for a consideration
of $45,000. This dam forms Kayuta Lake which is lined with summer homes today but
at that fime served only as another reservoir for the canal.

In: 1867 Jonathan A.y-\.HiH, a’general in the Civil War, with his partner, Thomes E.
Practor; Boston, built a tdnnery ot Wooedhull. This was-the largest tannery in the state
and had#420 vats which used 5,000 to 6,000 cords of hemlock bark a year. The raw
hides were shipped in and this tannery alone processed 25,000 hides annually to he
boated.down the canal. In 1876 a side of sole leather produced at the Proctor and Hill
Tannery :won first prize atthe Centennial Exposition in Philadelphia,

. Hilk'also-ran a store, bullt several houses for his workers and ran the Blue Eagle
boarding house. When the tannery went out of business Hill moved to other tannery
interests in Athens, Pa., and sold his store and house to W, E. Albertson who built a
pulp mjll at:‘Woadhull,



FORESTPORT

The.committes which was earning $1.50 a day to divide Williamsville and Remsen
must have been trying to make some easy: money or else worked as most committees
do, because it was not unijl Noveimber 24, 1869, that the town was finally erscted from
Remsen. The post office at Woodhull had been moved to Williamsville for convenience,
and Robert Crandall, the postmaster, suggested the named be changed to Forestpori
since the.canal had made the town a port in the forest. Everyone, including the Unired
States Post Office Department, agreed and when the town was formed it took the
name of the postoffice. S
’ On:March ‘1, 1870, the first town meeting was held and the following officers
were elected: supervisor, Harry Weed; town clerk, Charles €. Barber; justices of the
 peace, Dariiel Nugent, Judson W. Rockwell; assessors, Stephen Millard, Thomas Ryan;
commissioners of highways, Christopher Herrig, John Belinger; collector, Thomas J.
Alliger; poormasters, Philip Studor, John Lindsay; constables, James H. Jackson, Henry
Herrig; Asaph Learned, William Elthorpe, George Thurston; inspectors of election, Giles
C. Hovey, Edward Coughlin, " Cephas Weeks; sealer of weights and measures, James
McKenzie. N e

Durant’s history gives the population of Forestport in 1870 os 1,276 and in 1875
as 1,280. He states that Forastport had twenty-five log dwellings, the greatest number
in the county, and they wére valued at $2,030 or about $81 each. In 1877 the real
estate value as fixed by the supervisors was $373,951.

In April of 1869 the North Lake Dam went out and the thirty-three foot height of
water washed out the Forestport dam, the bridges across the river, and three milis:
During the rebuilding Mr. Savillian Trafforn ran a ferry from Denton’s Point to the site
of Seifert and Harrig mill. The boat was attached by ropes and pullies to a line and

pulled back and forth across the pond by hand. .

Thelast two decades of the nineteenth century found Forestport & booming lumber
town with “no law north of Remsen.” There were at least a dozen saloons with a two-
mile limit with a boseball bat behind each bar to provide law and order. The owner
of one saloon, which was on the town line between Forestport and Boonville, used to
move the bar from one end of the room to the other, depeading on which town had
voted dry at the time. When a small part of Forestport, which was legally in the tawu.
of Boonville, was annexed to Forestport in 1890 the bar tender lost his advantage over

the other saloons. .
X Gs centered around the canal feeder. Mills at White Lake and

along Woodhull Creeks had-been abandoned and the people moved into the village.
There were stores, blacksmith shops, a harness shop, a hub and spoke factory, hotels,
grist mills, saw mills, tanneries, a chair factory, shingle mill, a jewelry store, churches
and even a society of Good Templars with 160 members. An act of Legislature on May
23, 1867, authorized the construction of a railroad from Foresiport to Bellingertown,
with a spur to Grantville, which was built by Stephen Potter. This was a wooden rail-
road andthe lumber and hubs from the Grant mills were pulled on cdrs by harses 1o
a dock on'the pond and there loaded into canal boats, The boats were locked through
from thapond to the feeder. A canal boat could carry 65,000 feet of lumber and made
a routid¥rip t6 Albany in two:-weeks. :
Mrncidar shin Moamoion it G the Cleria o] the Brostar onel Hill Tesnmor ot
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- withsevspurae:Grantville, which wos built by Stephen.Potter, This was @ wooden rail-

.road:@nd"the lumber and ‘hubs' from-the Grant milla were pulléd on cdrs by heérses to
a.dock on the pond and ,thg’_‘r,e,loaded into canal boats, The boats were locked through
from’the pond to the feedar. A canal boat could carry 65,000 feet of lumber and made
«a rgupd trip to Albany in fwo weeks.. .

- Besides the McGuire.'mills in the willage and the Proctor and Hill Tannery at
Woodhuli, there were mills on the pond owned by W. R. Stanburgh, Seifert and Harrig,
James Gallagher, GeargeFarley, C. M. Bingham, and Hough and Hurlburt. Charles
Hayes had a turning and planing mill at Woodhull and also sold excelsior. Franeis
LaFountain ran a lumber mill on Bear Creek; Enos Crandall had a mill at Bellingertown,
Frad Brown operated o shingle mill on Alder Creek Pond, the Weed brothers had a
mill:6n Pine Creek and Joseph Ano ran a mill on Litle Woodhull.

" The largest mill in the town was built by the Forestport Lumber Company in the
1890’s. This was organized to clear 21,000 acres of land in the North Lake area which
was owned by the Adirondack League Club. The mill was operated by Thomas O’Nell
from’ Moira and his nephew, George Ainsworth, and drove five million feet of timber
intg the state pond. . ' o

5 X fumber and wood: products were not the only things shipped from the Forestport
. feeder. William Shanks won a bet by taking a load of ice on his boat to. New York
without its melting before he arrived. Potatoes were also shipped to the cities, Grain
was brought in and ground at the grist mill to use for all the horses connected with the
canal and lumbering,

R e s S

% - THE BREAKS

_ Forestport seemed to be more prosperous than it could ever have hoped for.
Within fifty years the village had grown fron: a few houses to a thriving lumber town.
However, there were a few men who wera dissatisfied with the status quo. So on
July. 23, 1897, the first break in the canal appeared. The break was the worst ever to
occur in the Bluck River Canal ond one of the worst In state history, It was about &
mile and o half from the village where the tow path is seventy feet above the river.
Seventeen hundred men worked day and night for thirty days to fill the hole which
was six hundred feet wide and sixty feet deep. The men were paid $1.65 a day, the
teams thirty-four cents an hour with time and o half for Sundays. The entire cost of
rebuilding was $62,781.78.

" The second break came on May 23, 1898, and closed the canal for twenty-one
days. This one was four hundred feet wide and fifty feet deep and cost the state
$50,764.47 to repair. Again the town was full of peaple, the stores, harness shop and
blacksmith shops were busy and everyane had wark. But the state began to be a little
suspicious. :

- When the third break occurred on September 18 of the next year the state sent
Pinkerton men to investigate. Even though this was a smaller break it ook seventeen
doys to repair and cost $17,089.72. ‘ -

" After a series of arrests and trials some of the town’s prominent members were
convicted of causing the brecks to bring business to the town. Thirteen men were ar-
rasted; five of whom were jailed, three fined, thres freed with two more freed for turn-
ing state’s evidence. .
¢ The bireaks did sucteed in bringing business for these years were among the mos!
pratperouse the town had ever known. The buarding heuses were full, the saloons and
hotels were always busy angd everyone was making money.

"5 But everyone was under suspicion. Every day someone new was arrested, colled

¢ e witness or ‘ot leasf suspected by his neighbors. It was rumored that there was a
secret funnel under Rivér Street connecting Jim Rudolph’s saloon with Doyle’s Hotel in
‘case any of the men had to-get together in an emergency. The tunnel was never found
and has gone into- history as one of the legends of the town.

THE FIRES

‘While Forestport was at the height of its prosperity, the village was destroyed
theee times by fire. The first fire started in April, 1891, in the barn of the Sherman House.
The town had no fire company and the people were helpless. A strong wind blew the
fiames to the hotel, up both sides of School Street and down Division Street to the
middle of the block. Here the houses were not so close together and bucket brigades
with rugs soaked in water and laid on the roofs halted the firs. The same methods were
used on the house dcross the street from the Sherman House to keeo the flumes from
spreading down River Street. No one knew how the fire started but it was rumored thai
tumberjacks smoking in the barn had set firc to the hay. Others believed that a lumher-
‘jack who had lost money at cards sst the fire for revenge.

. This fire led the townspeople to organize a volunteer fire company with Charles
Bingham as its chief. They built a firehouse ngar the river which was used until the
company was reorganized and bought the present huilding in 1939,
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¥ When «a fire started in February, 1899, the company ‘was far from.adequate. At
/12430 in:the morning during one of the worst storms in years, fire broke out in the. Get-
~#gn House, the largest hotel in town. The chemical and hand pump was toa *smqll to
/have any effect on the fire and the water in the hose soon froze so that the men were
$preed 1o use a bucket'brigade again. When the flumes were finally check od, fourteon

) ghjﬂdings‘ on River anfl Woodhull Streets had burned and, the panic-stti.cken residents
“Yfom twenty-four others had carfled their possessicns into the street.
‘.%" For a second time the town rebivilt and as an adde.d ‘precavtion in 1963 incotpo-
téted the village so that ‘o water system and fire' prote:ction cov'd be provided. John
. H. Neejer was the first mayor. .o

., Bafore the water was turned on permanently, a third fire broke out in O’Connor’s
“Hotel.in 1906. This. fire was much smoller. It burned seven buildings, including two
,ana&gg saloon, barber shop and a store plus all the barns Lekind. thase. buildings.
%~ Soon after this fire the water system was permanently installed: at o cost of
$22,000. The main ling was faid with woaden pipe which was replaced not many yeaps
i ;rfgo,j’agsfides providinﬁ; convenience and fire protection, the new water. ‘system ended
‘W& annual typhoid fever epidemic. o '
.. The water system was shortly followed by electricity provided by a plant owned
iHd operated by George Farley. Power for this was provided by the river during the
‘winter months and supplemented during the summer when the water was diverted into
#he canal. Electriclty was furnished from dusk until eleven o’clock and the lights always
‘Blinked three times as‘d warning to those who stayed up beyohd this hour to light their

ps.

Eventually the village bought the light plant and later contracted with the North-

‘ern New York Utilities Inc., now Niagara Mohawk Power Corp., 1o furnish electrical
service. The old plant was sold to Inlet, _

THE TWENTIETH CENTURY

In the early nineteen hundreds the character of the fown beégan to change. The
traffic on the canal was dropping off and one by one the mills closed. A few burned
and were never replaced and others were closed for lack of -business. The population
also decreased, several stores went out of business, and saloons closed. _
~+. The small schoolhouse had been outarown and in 1906 a new five-room school
was built. This was called the Forestport Union School and offered ten grades. When
this building burned in 1926 a central district was formed and o new building erected
ot Beechwood. This was the first central school in the county and one of the first in the
state. A few years ago this district centralized with Boonville and West Leyden to form
the Adirondack Central School and the new building on the Alder Creek Road was
open in 1969 as a grade school. '

i Alibrary was formed in 1896 and by 1920 had become inactive. The American
‘Yegion bought the building in 1947,

' Forestport has:the uniqye distinction o having had two supsrvisors af one time.
When Supervisor John B. Coughlin died in office the Town Board could not agree on
.a:successor so a third.name, that of Mrs. Laura Lafountain, was proposed. A majority
of the board agreed and she was duly sworn in. Fred S. Liddle then appaared with a
“petition signed by three board members and the fight was on. Affer much discussion
“@nd litigation Mrs. LoFeuntain was declared the legal supervisor.

7" Llike the rest of the country, Forestport sant its sons into the service and many of
its residents into war plants during the wars. There were forty-five men in service dur-
_ing the First World War and one hundred forty-three men and women in service during
<Wotld War il. There were five gold stars on the town honor roll. Boys from here served
~"-'*wf§he‘ Korean conflict and now they are serving in Viet Nam.

- The town now has‘one industry, the Roma Specialty Company, which manufactures

ng tackle and hog.employed on an average of twenty persons.

-+ 50 1949 the AlriForce constructed a loran tower northeast of Forestport und

- ;brought the town inta,prominence again.

. During the last twenty-five years the character of the town has changed again

“and .we are now: a summer resort. Kayuta Lake is lined with camps as are White Lake

" "‘apd Otter Lake.  Many summer residents are winterizing their camps and becoming
‘year-round residents; Although they must commute to Utica or Rome to work, the roads

- ave well plowed alf-winter and no one minds too much. Two trailer parks, “Fairwood-

. Evergreen” and “Christmas Tree Park,” are receiving state-wide recognition.

. “Qur air is not polluted’'— yet — our river is beautiful, the lakes and streams offer

xcellent fishing. As we enter the second century of our existence as a town it is with

ek
-+the hope that the past is only a prelude to the good life to follow,
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